MARSHALL FAIRCLOTH

Chairman

JIMMY KEEFE

Vice Chatrman

JEANNEI'TE M. COUNCIL
KENNETH S. EDGE
CHARLES E. EVANS

BILLY R. KING
EDWARD G, MELVIN

TO:
FROM:
DATE:

SUBJECT:

CANDICE WHITE
Clerk to the Board

KELLIE BEAM
Deputy Clerk

UMBERLAN
C* COUNTY*D

NORTH CAROLINA

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

MEMORANDUM

Policy Commitiee Members (Commissioners Evans, Keefe, and Council)
Kellie Beam, Deputy Clerk to the Board K
December 30, 2011

Policy Committee Meeting — January 5, 2012

There will be a regular meeting of the Policy Committee on Thursday, January 5,
2012 at 10:30 AM in Room 564 of the Cumberland County Courthouse.

AGENDA

1. Election of Policy Committee Chairman

2. Approval of Minutes — October 6, 2011

3. Consideration of Proposed Revisions to Animal Control Ordinance

4, Proposal to Conduct Background Checks on Individuals Wanting to Adopt from

Shelter

5. Appointment of a County Attorney to the Cape Fear Valley Hospital System
Board of Trustees

8. Other ltems of Business

cc; Board of Commissioners
Administration

Legal

Communications Manager
County Department Head(s)
Sunshine List

5th Floor, New Courthouse * P.O. Box 1829 » Fayetteville, North Carolina 28302-1829

(910) 678-7771 * Fax: (910) 678-7770



ITEM NO.

DRAFT

CUMBERLAND COUNTY POLICY COMMITTEE
NEW COURTHOUSE, 117 DICK STREET, 5TH FLOOR, ROOM 564
OCTOBER 6, 2011 — 10:30 A M.
MINUTES

MEMBERS PRESENT: Commissioner Jimmy Keefe
Commissioner Charles Evans

MEMBERS ABSENT: Commissioner Ed Melvin, Policy Committee Chair
OTHER COMMISSIONERS

PRESENT: Commissioner Kenneth Edge

OTHERS PRESENT: James Martin, County Manager

Amy Cannon, Deputy County Manager

James Lawson, Assistant County Manager

Rick Moorefield, County Attorney

Sally Shutt, Communications and Strategic Inifiatives
Manager

Dr. John Lauby, Animal Services Director

Bryan Leonard, Fayetteviile City Attorney’s Office

Kellie Beam, Deputy Clerk to the Board

Press

Commissioner Jimmy Keefe called the meeting to order.
1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: SEPTEMBER 1, 2011 MEETING

MOTION:  Commissioner Evans moved to approve the minutes as presented.
SECOND:  Commissioner Keefe
VOTE: UNANIMOUS (2-0)

2, CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSED REVISIONS TO ANIMAL CONTROL
ORDINANCE

Commissioner Keefe called on James Martin, County Manager, who asked Rick
Moorefield, County Attorney, and Dr. Lauby, Animal Services Director, to discuss
revisions to the animal control ordinance.

Mr. Moorefield stated the basic ordinance provisions are still the same. Mr. Moorefield
referenced the information below which lists the sections where substantive changes are
proposed:

e Section 3-17.A — Clarifies that all hybrids of wild and exotic animals are to be
included in the definition of wild and exotic animals. This would make the bear




DRAFT

at Jambbas Ranch subject to the ordinance. The existing ordinance also requires
Jambbas Ranch to tegister and obtain a permit from the Animal Control Director
for exemption as a zoo or zoological park. Unless Jambbas Ranch applies for a
permit, it would be in violation of the permit requirement.

e Section 3-22 — Modifies the existing requirement for spaying and neutering dogs
and cats released from the shelter to adoptive or existing owners. Requires that
all released dogs and cats be spayed or neutered within a time limit established by
the Animal Control Director. Does not require the animal control department to
cause the animals to be spayed or neutered but makes the owner’s failure to do so
a violation.

e Section 3-23.J — Requested by the Animal Control Board to regulate the
transportation of animals in the beds of pickup trucks.

¢ Section 3-25(c) — Clarifies that the Animal Control Director is to determine what
level of training is appropriate for Animal Control Officers using fircarms.

e Section 3-51.B — This section is essential to avoid double taxing anyone who
listed and paid tax for 2011.

Commissioner Evans stated he would like to see a stipulation on the size of the container
that houses bears at any facility. Commissioner Keefe stated he fecls it would be difficult
to single out cage requirements for one breed. Questions and discussion followed. Mr.
Moorelield stated it is critical to get a good working ordinance on the books. Mr.
Moorefield further stated he can modify the language in the ordinance to give the animal
control director the discretion to make reasonable requirements for the housing of zoo
animals; the committee agreed this would address their concerns. The consensus of the
committee was for Mr. Moorefield to modify the language in the ordinance to give the
animal control director the discretion to make reasonable requirements for the housing of
700 animals.

Questions and discussion followed in reference to Section 3-22. Commissioner Edge
stated he did not agree with Section 3-22.B. Commissioner Edge further stated he does
not feel pet owners should have to spay or neuter their animal if their animal accidentally
gets loose from their yard and is picked up by Animal Control; the committee agreed.
Mr. Mooreficld suggested they eliminate Section 3-22.B completely and re-word Section
322D to read “the failure of any owner adopting an animal to comply with this Section
shall constitute a violation of this Section”.

M. Moorefield stated Section 3-23.] is a new section requested by the Animal Control
Board that regulates the transportation of animals in the beds of pickup trucks. Dr. Lauby
stated animal control officers are not police officers and do not have the authority to stop
trucks driving down the road. Commissioner Keefe stated it would be very difficult to
enforce this section and he does not want to agree to an ordinance that is not enforceable.



DRAFT

Commissioner Edge agreed with Commissioner Keefe. The consensus of the committee
was to remove Section 3-23.J from the ordinance.

Discussion and questions followed in reference to Section 3-25(c). The consensus of the
committee was to leave it as presented by Mr. Moorefield.

Mr. Moorefield referenced Section 3-51.B; he stated it makes it clear that anyone that
listed and paid the pet tax in 2011 would not be subject to this additional pet tax.
Discussion and questions on the pet tax followed. The committee asked for clarification
on who will be responsible for collecting the pet tax at the next Policy Committee
meeting.

Commissioner Keefe expressed concern about people living on an acre with three dogs
and people living in an apartment with three dogs and stated it seems unrealistic to have
the same set of standards in an apartment that you have in a single family home on one-
half acre or even on one-quarter acre. Commissioner Keefe further stated he would like
compatible zoning for the county and the city that mostly deals with muiti-family homes
so a limit can be placed on the number of animals. Mr. Moorefield advised the only way
to address the concern is to place a limit on the number of animals in multifamily housing
regardless of the zoning jurisdiction. Commissioner Keefe asked Dr. Lauby if he could
enforce this. Dr. Lauby stated if it is a part of the ordinance, it would not be a probiem.
Mr. Moorefield explained this type of provision would have to be placed under the
nuisance section because it is the same sort of issue as barking dogs. Mr. Moorefield
stated although it would be difficult for Animal Control to enforce, it could be handled
through the process in which the complainant has the option to take out a criminal
Summeons.

Commissioner Keefe requested input from Bryan Leonard of the Fayetteville City
Attorney’s Office. Mr. Leonard stated the way the ordinance is currently drafted will
allow it to be applied within the city limits.

The consensus of the Policy Committee was for all the revisions to be made and brought
back to the next Policy Committee meeting on November 3, 2011.

3. OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS
There were no further items of business.

MEETING ADJOURNED AT 11:50 AM



ITEM NO.

OFFICE OF THE COUNTY ATTORNEY
5t Floor, New Courthouse ¢ PO Box 1829 » Suite 551 « Fayetteville, North Carolina 28302-1829
{910) 678-7762

MEMORANDUM
TOR THE AGENDA OF THE JANUARY 5, 2012 MEETING OF THE POLICY COMMITTEE
TO: Policy Committee; Co, Manager; Asst. Co. Manager; Dr. Lauby; Karen McDonald;
John Jackson; FAPS; Shelby Fownsend
FROM: Co. Atty,
DATE: December 30, 2011

SUBJECT: Revision of Animal Control Ordinance
Attachments: Final Draft of Revised Ordinance

DISCUSSION:

A summary of the proposed significant changes is set out below. Overall, duplicative provisions and
requirements which have not been or could not be enforced were removed. The penalty provisions were
simplified and made uniform except in those areas where Dr. Lauby believed a more substantial penalty
was effective and needed. About one-fourth of the existing ordinance has been eliminated. County
attorney, assistant county manager and Dr. Lauby met and fully discussed this final draft on December
22,2011,

SUMMARY:
ARTICLEL ADMINISTRATION

Sec. 3-1 Animal Control Department established. Name of department is changed from
Animal Services to Animal Control throughout ordinance.

See, 3-2. Animal Control Director. No significant changes.

See. 3-3. Functions of Animal Controi Department.  No significant changes.

See, 3-4. Animal Control Board established.  No significant changes.

Sec, 3-5, Dangerous Dog Appeal Board established.  This section was moved from Article

HI. Board consists of three members appointed by Animal Control Board from its members, rather than
existing full Animal Control Board. Quorum consists of only two members. The manner in which
hearings are conducted is specified with Director’s casc to be presented by county attorney. This is
significant change.

Sec. 3-6 through Sec. 3-9. Reserved.
12-29-11 Draft - Cumberland County Animal Control Ordinance

Summary of Changes
Page 1 of 5

3




ARTICLE 11, GENERAL PROVISIONS,

Sec, 3-10. Definitions.  Terms no longer used in the ordinance have been omitted.

Sec, 3-11. Applicability of state laws to custody of animals. No significant changes.
Sec. 3-12, Injuring, poisoning or trapping animals prohibited. No significant changes.
Sec, 3-13. Diseased animals; injured or sick animals.  No significant changes.

Sec. 3-14, Property owner may impound animal, No significant changes.

Sec. 3-15. Nuisance animals; complaint procedures,

Nuisance complaints, such as barking dogs, are some of the most frequent complaints and officers
typically cannot verify the complaint. New ordinance provides that enforcement shall be solely by the
complainant obtaining a criminal summons. These complaints have created public relations problem
with citizens who are not willing to testify against their neighbors and will not accept that animal control
officers cannot testify with only hearsay evidence. This is a significant change.

Sec. 3-16. Animal fighting and animal fighting paraphernalia prohibited. No significant
changes.
Former Sec, 3-17 Dogs prohibited from park trails. Repealed because it has never been

enforced and city provides scooper bags at the trails.

Sec, 3-17, Keeping of wild or exotic animals, New ordinance expands the definition of
wild or exotic animals to include all hybrids, otherwise, same as existing ordinance.

Sec. 3-18, Inhumane or cruel treatment prohibited, No significant changes.

Sec, 3-19. Control of animals required; at large; strays; impoundment; confinement in
season; penalty for biting while at large, No significant changes.

Sec. 3-20. Records; disposition of animals; adoption, No significant changes.

Sec, 3-21. Redemption of impounded animals; impoundment where no one is present to

care for an animal.  No significant changes.

Sec. 3-22. Spaying or neutering as condition for adoption of dogs and cats; violations,
No changes other than length of post-adoption time period fo obtain spay or neuter left to discretion of
Director.

Sec. 3-23. Keeping of animals; mistreatment, abandonment prohibited; care; restraining

of dogs; exercise arca for dogs.  Significant change in enforcement of anti-
tethering provision which will allow Animal Control to seize a dog which has been tethered for 14 days
after receiving notice of violation.

Sce. 3-24, Dead animal pickup; relinquishing animals to the shelter.  No significant changes,

See, 3-25. Apprehension of wild dogs. Establishes that Director must determine officers have
adequate training to use firearms, otherwise, no significant changes.

12-29-11 Draft - Cumberland County Animal Control Ordinance
Summary of Changes
Page 2 of 5



Sec. 3-26. Regulation of the number of dogs and cats which may be kept on certain premises,
New provision which limits the number of dogs and cats which can be kept at residences with residential
zoning classifications of R20 or less (less than one-half acre) and in any multi-family dwellings. No
fonger dependent on zoning regulations. This is a significant change.

Sec. 3-27 through Sec, 3-29. Reserved.

ARTICLE HI, DANGEROUS DOGS

This Article was significantly changed by eliminating classifications of aggressive and vicious dogs
which were in addition to dangerous dogs, lessening the severity of the injury required in a bite or atfack
to declare a dog “potentially dangerous,” and increasing the liability insurance requirements for owners
of dangerous dogs from $100,000 to $200,000.

Sec, 3-39. Definitions.

Sec. 3-31. Application of ordinance; exceptions.

See. 3-32. Reporting requirements.

See, 3-33. Determination that a dog is potentially dangerous; appeals.

Sec, 3-34, Registration required.

See. 3-35. Permit required.

Sec, 3-36. Regulation of dangerous dogs; security and restraint requirements,

Seec. 3-37. Impoundment of dangerous dogs,

Sec. 3-38. Violations, penalties and other remedies,

Sec. 3-39, Administrative provisions.

ARTICLE IV, RABIES CONTROL AND ANIMAL BITES No significant changes to this
Article,

Sec. 3-40. Rabies control.

Sec. 3-41. Reports of bite cases; report by veterinarian,
Sec. 3-42. Records.

Sec. 3-43. Interference.

Sec. 3-44 through Sec. 3-49. Reserved.

Former ARTICLE V. KENNELS; PET SHOPS was repealed because it was not being enforced.

12-29-11 Draft - Cumberland County Animal Control Ordinance
Summary of Changes
Page 3 of 5



ARTICLE YV, LICENSING OF DOGS AND CATS

Although there has been much discussion on going to a “pet license” approach like that in New Hanover
County, the new ordinance continues the present privilege license. The only significant change is the
elimination of the additional tax on keeping more than three dogs or cats. Dr, Lauby reports this
additional tax was not understood and not enforced. The current ordinance language does give the Tax
Administrator the flexibility to delegate some of the duties to the Animal Control Director., Animal
Control has software in place which enables non-listed dogs and cats to be identified when they are
vaccinated and is using this information to enforce additionat listings and penalties. Dr. McNeil, the New
Hanover County Director of Animal Control, reported that New Hanover’s program was so successful
because 90% of the pet license fees were collected by the veterinarians. Dr, Lauby reports that level of
participation by the local veterinarians is not likely at this time.

See, 3-50. License for dogs and cats.

Sec, 3-51. Terms of license; exemption,

Sec. 3-52. Issuance of records.

Sec, 3-53. Fastening of tags to collar or harness.

Sec, 3-54. License fee in addition to other fees.

Sec, 3-55. Use of revenues collected from license fees.
Sec. 3-56. Transfer of cats and dogs.

See. 3-57, Non-applicability of Article.

See, 3-58 - 3-59, Reserved,

ARTICLE VII, INJURED ANIMAL STABILIZATION FUND No significant changes.

Sec. 3-70. Control of injured animals; stabilization fund.

Sec. 3-71 through Sec. 3-79.  Reserved.

ARTICLE VIIL MISCELLANEOUS. No significant changes in this Article other than addition
the last section at the request of City of Fayetteville.

Sec. 3-80. Keeping chickens or rabbits - Sanitation requirements.

Sec. 3-81. Stables to be kept clean.

Sec. 3-82. Grazing animals,

Sec. 3-83. Disposition of dead animals,

12-29-11 Draft - Cumberland County Animal Contrel Ordinance
Summary of Changes
Page 4 of 5



Sec. 3-84, Selling live animals in public rights of way and other public property
prohibited,

Sec. 3-85. Provisions only applicable within the corporate limits of any municipality in which
this ordinance is applied.

Sec, 3-86 through Sec. 3-89.  Reserved.

ARTICLE IX, ENFORCEMENT No significant changes to this Article.
Sec, 3-90. Enforcement, generally.
Sec. 3-91, Penalties for violations.

Sec. 3-92. Severability.

12-29-11 Draft - Cumberland County Animal Contrel Ordinance
Swmnmary of Changes
Page S of 5




AN ORDINANCE OF THE CUMBERLAND COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
REPEALING CHAPTER 3, ANIMALS, OF THE CUMBERLAND COUNTY CODE AND
ADOPTING A REVISED CHAPTER 3, ANIMALS, OF THE CUMBERLAND COUNTY CODE

WHEREAS, the Cumberland County Board of Commissioners adopted a revised County
Animal Control Ordinance in August, 2000, and has amended it from time to time; and

WHEREAS, the Cumberland County Animal Control Ordinance has been codified as
Chapter 3, Animals, of the Cumberland County Code; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners wishes to make a comprehensive revision of the
Cumberfand County Animal Control Ordinance by the repeal of Chapter 3, Animals, of the
Cumberland County Code and the adoption of the revised Chapter 3, Animals, of the Cumberland
County Code as set forth below; and :

Whereas, the Board of Commissioners finds the comprehensive revision of Chapter 3,
Animals, of the Cumberland County Code to be in the public interest and to promote the public
health, safety and welfare, : -

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the C_umberiand County Board of.
Commissioners that: oo

Chapter 3, Animals, of the Cumberland County Code is ﬁereby repealed in its entirety
and a revised Chapter 3, Animals, of the Cumberland County Code is hereby adopted.

CHAPTER 3
ANIMALS

Art. I Administration
Art, 1I General Provisions -

Art. TII.  Dangerous Dogs, '

Art. IV. Rabies Control and Animal Bites
Art. V. Licensing of Dogs and Cats

Art. VL Injured Animal Stabilization Fund
Art. VIL Miscellaneous |

Art.  VIIL :Enforcement

ARTICLE L. A:I)MINISTRATfION
Sec, 3-1. A]lilﬁﬁl antl';1 Department established.

There is hereby established in the government of the County an Animal Control Department.
Sec. 3-2. Animal Control Director.

The Animal Control Department shall be supervised by the Animal Control Director, who shall
be the director of that department, appointed by the county manager.

Sec. 3-3. Functions of Animal Control Department.

The Animal Control Department shall have and perform the duties and responsibilities set forth
herein, shall enforce the provisions of this Chapter and of state law relating to animal control and animal

12-29-11 Draft - Cumberland County Animal Control Ordinance
Page [ 0f28



welfare, shall administer and enforce an animal controf program within such municipalities within the
county as by interfocal agreement may contract with the County for such services and apply this Chapter
in their municipal jurisdictions, and shall maintain and operate the county animal shelter.

Sec. 3-4, Animal Control Board established.
() There is established the Cumberland County Animal Control Board.

(b) The Animal Control Board shall be composed of seven (7) members to be appointed by
the Board of Commissioners. Of the seven members, two shall be residents of the City of Fayetteville
appointed by the Board of Commissionets from among the names of four persons nominated by the
Fayetteville City Council, that is, two nominations for each seat. At least one member shall be a person
with knowledge and experience in dog behavior and/or handling, one member shall be ex officio the
veterinatian on contract to the Animal Control Department, one member shall have an interest in
promoting the goals of the Animal Protection Society or the Humane Society or another such broadly-
based and representative organization interested in the care and protection of animals, and the other
members shall represent the public at large. The members shall serve staggered two-year terms; four
members shall have terms that expire on June 30 in even-numbered years following the year of their
initial appointment and three membets shall have terms that expire on June 30 of odd-numbered years.

{©) The powers and duties of the Animal Control Board shall include:

(1) Appointing three (3) of its members to sit on the Dangerous Dog Appeal Board;
(2) Hearing any appeals provided for in this ordinance other than appeals of the Director’s
determinations of potentially dangerous dogs; '

3) Providing advice and information to the Animal Control Department;

) Upon coordination with the Animal Control Director, making recommendations to the
Board of Commissioners or the Fayetteville City Council, as appropriate, for the
betterment of the County's animal control program;

(5) - Inconjunction with the Animal Control Department and the County's Public
Information Director, providing for a program of public education, information and
outreach concerning responsible pet ownership, animal cruelty, and the County's animal
control program; and

6) Selecting officers of the board, including a chairperson, and adopting rules of procedure.

(d) A majority of the members shall constitute a quorum for the Animal Control Board to
conduct its meetings. The Animal Control Board shall adopt a schedule of regular meetings and post and
file it with the Clerk to the Board of Commissioners and otherwise as required by the Open Meetings
Law. The Animal Control Board shall schedule at least four regular quarterly meetings, at which
meetings the Animal Control Director or his designee shall appear and participate. In addition, the
Animal Control Board may hold such special or emergency meetings, upon the call of the chairperson or
any three members, as may be appropriate in the circumstances, subject to compliance with the Open
Meetings Law.

Sec. 3-5. Dangerous Dog Appeal Board established.

(a) There is established the Dangerous Dog Appeal Board.

12-29-11 Draft - Cumberland County Animal Control Ordinance
Page 2 of 28



(b) The Dangerous Dog Appeal Board shall consist of three (3) members to be appointed by
the Animal Control Board from among its members. The members shall serve staggered two-year terms,
Any two (2) members of the Dangerous Dog Appeal Board shall constitute a quorum for conducting a
meeting,

(c) The powers and duties of the Dangerous Dog Appeal Board shall include:

(1) Selecting a chairperson to preside over its appeal hearings;
/

2) Hearing the appeals of the determinations of potentially dangerous dogs by the Animal
Control Director {or his designee) pursuant to Article III of this ordinance or Chapter 67
of the General Statutes.

(d) The administrative assistant to the Animal Control Director shall be the Clerk to the
Animal Control Board and the Dangerous Dog Appeal Board.

Sec. 3-6 through Sec. 3-9. Reserved.

ARTICLE II. GENERAL PROVISIONS

Sec. 3-10. Definitions

(a) As used in this ordinance, the following terms shall have tlle meanmgs respectively
ascribed to them in this section:

"Abandon" means to cease providing for the care, control or maintenance of an animal without
the transfer of ownership of such animal.

"Animal Shelter or Department’s Shelter" means the plemises operated by the Animal Control
Department for the purposes of impounding, sheltering or caring for animals or any other premises
operated by another entity with which the county contracts for such purposes.

"Animal Contl ol Department" means the Cumberland County Animal Control Department.

"Animal Control Dnectol means the Director of the Animal Control Department, or his/her
de51gnee

"Animai Control Officer” means a person employed by the Animal Control Department as its
enforcement officer-in the impoundment of animals, controlling of animals running at large, and as
otherwise provided or required in this Chapter,

"At large" or "running at large" means any animal which is not confined on the property of its
owner, the leased premises of the animal's owner, or under the actual physical control of a competent
person, other than a licensed, currently privilege tax paid, hunting dog under supervision while engaged
in a lawful actual or simulated hunt.

“Chapter” means the provisions of this Animal Control Ordinance as may be in effect in
Cumberland County or any municipal jurisdiction located therein.

"Confinement” means to secure an animal in a locked house, run, enclosure or fenced yard within
the boundaries of the owner's, leaseholder's, or keeper's property (i.e., house, fenced yard).

12-29-11 Draft - Cumberland County Animal Control Ordinance
Page 3 0of 28



"County Manager" shall mean the duly appointed County Manager of the County or his/her
designee.

"Cruelty” means to endanger by any act of omission or commission the life, health or safety of an
animal.

“Director” means the Director of the Animal Control Department.

"Exposed to rabies” means any animal that has been bitten by or exposed in a manner proven fo
be able to transmit rabies, to any other animal known to have been infected with rabies or any other
animal reasonably suspected of being infected with rabies that is not available for laboratory diagnosis.

"Fee Schedule" means any schedule of fees related to the administration of this ordinance, which
may be adopted by the Board of Commissioners.

"Fowl" means chickens, guineas, geese, ducks, pigeons, and other avian animals.
“Harboring” means regularly feeding, sheltering or caring for an animal.

"Impoundment” means placing an animal in an animal control vehicle or unit, or holding an
animal at the animal shelter, or holding an animal at any other location at the written direction of the
Director of Animal Control. :

"Keeper" means any person, acting in the capacity of the owner, or at the owner's request, who is
responsible for the care, welfare and maintenance of the animal. :

*Livestock" includes, but is not limited to, equine animals, bovine animals, sheep, goats, llamas
and swine. o '

"Neuter" means to render a male dog or cat unable to reproduce.

"Owner" shall mean anyone taking care of or having custody of an animal, such as by providing
food, water, shelter or medical care, but shall not include taking care or having custody of the animal for
compensation, ' N

"Permit" means a permit issued by the Animal Control Department or similar agency of any
applicable governmental unit having jurisdiction.

"Potentially Dangerous Dog" and "Dangerous Dog" shall have the meanings set forth in Section
3-30 hereof. i .--

"Restraint" means that an animal is actually physically controlled by leash or tether held by a
competent person or within any vehicle, trailer or other conveyance being driven, pulled or parked on the
street or confined within the property limits of its owner or keeper.

"Run" means an arca used to confine a dog or dogs of a size that complies with any of the
requirements of this Chapter.

"Sanitary" means a condition of good odor and cleanliness, which precludes the probability of
disease transmission and insect breeding and which preserves the health of the public.

"Spay" means to remove the ovaries of a female dog or cat in order to render the animal unable
to reproduce.

12-29-11 Draft - Cumberland County Animal Control Ordinance
Page 4 of 28



“Srate law” means the General Statutes of North Carolina.

"Stray" means any animal reasonably presumed not to have any owner, including but not limited
to an animal running at large or not under restraint.

"Tethered" or "tethering” mean attaching an animal to a stationary object by means of a chain,
cable, rope or similar device.

"Vaccination” means an injection of United States Department of Agriculture approved rabies
vaccine administered by a licensed veterinarian or certified rabies vaccinator as defined in G.S. 130A-

186.

"Transfer” means to convey or change ownership from one person to another with or without the
exchange of money or other consideration. '

() All other words or phrases used herein shall be'deﬁned and interpreted according to their
COMMOn usage. '

Sec. 3-11. Applicability of state laws to cust'ody of animals.

No person owning or having in his custody any animal shall violate any laws, rules, or
regulations of the state applicable thereto. The provisions of this Chapter shall govern where the
provisions of the laws, rules and regulations of the state are less restrictive then the provisions of
this Chapter. o B

Sec. 3-12. Injuring, poisoning or trapping animals pi‘ohibit__ed_.

(a) A person who accidentally or otherwise strikes an animal with an automobile and injures
it shall promptly notify the Animal Control Department or any law enforcement agency having
Jjurisdiction. ' ' :

)] No person shall knowingly expose or give to any animal any poisonous substance,
whether mixed with food or not. This provision, however, does not apply to the eradication or population
control of certain species of rodents.

(c) - No person shall set or expose an open jaw type trap, leg hold trap, or any type trap which
would likely cause physical harm or injury to any animal. This provision shall not apply to persons who
are licensed by the state to trap animals, to Animal Control Officers or to persons using humane live
capture traps. '

Sec. 3-13. Diseased animals; injured or sick animals.

(a) Every person owning or having any animal under his charge which he knows or suspects
to be sick or injured shall isolate the animal from other animals, shall obtain or provide appropriate
treatment for such animal within two days or may have the animal humanely euthanized.

(b) Any animal which comes into possession of the Department’s shelter which is seriously
injuted, sick or exhibiting symptoms of contagious disease shall be humanely euthanized by the shelter
personnel without waiting for the expiration of the period in which such animal may be placed for
adoption. Provided, however, that before such sick, diseased or injured animal is euthanized, the shelter
personnel shall contact the animal’s owner, if known, to determine the disposition of such animal. If the
owner indicates that the animal will be reclaimed but fails to reclaim the animal within two days of such

12-29-11 Draft - Cumberland County Animal Control Ordinance
Page 5 of 28



notification, or if the owner of such animal is not known, the sick or injured animal shall be euthanized
by the shelter personnel. The shelter supervisor shall keep a record of such animal, to include breed and
sex of the animal, when the animal came into possession of the sheiter, the type of injury, disease or
sickness of such animal, the date the animal was euthanized, and any other information relevant to the
health, condition and description of such animal.

Sec. 3-14, Property owner may impound animal.

(@) Any person who finds a domesticated animal or fowl on his propeity to his injury or
annoyance may:

)] Take such animal to the Animal Control shelter; or

(2) Retain possession of such animal or fowl and, within one business day, notify the
Animal Conirol Depariment of this custody, giving a description of the animal and the
owner's name, if known. Any person removing the animal from the impounder’s
property shall remove the animal in such a manner-$o as not to cause injury to the
animal. : o

)] No person shall knowingly and intentionally harbor, feed or keep in possession by
confinement or otherwise any stray animal which does not belong to him, unless he shall have within one
business day from the time such animal came into his possession notified the Animal Control Department
of his intention either to: (i) surrender the animal to the animal shelter, or (ii) advertise for five (5)
consecutive days such stray animal in the local newspaper with the greatest average daily circulation in
the community. If the person possessing such stray animal elects to so advertise and the owner thereof
shall not have responded by the tenth (10th) day after the date of the first publication, the person so
advertising shall be presumed the legal owner of such animal. If the advertisement of a stray animal shall
not have been first published within seventy-two (72) hours after so.notifying the Animai Control
Department, then the animal shall be surrendered to the Animal Control Department,

Sec. 3-15. Nuisance animals; complaint procedures.

(a) For the purposes of this section, "nuisance" means the conduct or behavior resulting from
any act of omission or commission by the owner or keeper of any small or large animal, fowl, cat or dog
which molests passersby or passing vehicles, damages private or public property; barks, whines, howls,
crows or makes other noises in an habitual or continuous fashion which annoys the comfort, repose,
health or safety of the people in the comniunity; is unconfined in season; habitually defecates on the
property of someone other than the owner; or habitvally eats or otherwise destroys the plants, shrubs or
similar landscaping on the property of someone other than the owner.

(b) For the purposes of this section, “nuisance animal” means any animal that commits any
of the acts, conduct or behaviors defined as constituting a nuisance in this section.

(€) No person shalf keep any animal which is a nuisance animal or which causes a nuisance
as defined in this section.

(d} A violation of this section shall constitute a criminal misdemeanor punishable by a
maximum fine of $100 for a first offense and a maximum fine of $250 for each subsequent violation
occutring within twelve months of the first violation. Each day of a continuing violation shall constitute a
separate offense.

(e) Enforcement of this section shall solely be by the complainant or complainants obtaining
a criminal summons or by criminal process instituted by any law enforcement officer.

12-29-11 Draft - Cumberland County Animal Control Ordinance
Page 6 of 28



Sec. 3-16. Animal fighting and animal fighting paraphernalia prohibited.

(a) No person shall permit or conduct any dog fights, cock fights, or other combat between
animals, or between animal and human.

(b) Tt shall be unlawful for any owner or person to keep, own, possess, maintain, control, or
use materials used or intended to be used in dog fighting or cock fighting. Such items shall include but
are not limited to treadmills; fighting or fight training pit; wooden sticks or handies used or capable of
being used to pry open jaws; magazines, photographs, film, or videotapes depicting animal fighting or
animal fight training; breeding stands; jaw strengthening devices; spurs; gaffs or slasher cases; gaff or
knife ganges; mounting blocks; leather wraps; scabbards and leg or wing bands; training, conditioning, or
fight coniracts or records; veterinary drugs; suture kits, needles; and syringes and other veterinary
supplics used for the administration of veterinary treatment for wounds ot injuries from animal fighting
or animal fight training. :

() Upon criminal charges being brought for violations of this section, the Animal Control
Director may petition the court for the confiscation of any animals kept or involved, or materials used or
intended to be used in such fighting. > :

Sec. 3-17. Keeping of wild or exotic animals.

(a) For the purpose of this section, a wild or exotic animal means an animal which is usually
not a domestic animal and which can normally be found in the wild state, including, but not limited to
alligators, apes, bats, bears, crocodiles, deer, elephants, foxes, leopards, lions, lynxes, monkeys, panthers,
raccoons, rhinoceroses, wolves, poisonous snakes, skunks, tigers, and like animals. Hybrids or cross-
breeds of any wild or exotic animals shall also be considered as wild or exotic animals.

[3)] It is unlawful to keep, harbor, breed, sell or trade éniy wild or exotic animal for any
purpose, except as may be licensed by the state Wildlife Resources Commission under its regulations
pertaining to wildlife rehabilitators.

{c) This section shall not apply to zoological parks, zoos, educational or medical institutions,
or circuses that perform in Cumberland County for not more than seven (7} days. If a circus is scheduled
to be in Cumberland County for mor¢ than seven (7) days, then the circus may apply to the Animal
Control Director for an extension permit for a period not to exceed an additional seven (7) days,
on such terms as the Animal Control Director shall determine will protect the public health, safety and
welfare. i

Sec, 3-18. Inhumane or cruel freatment prohibited.
It is unlawful for any owner or person to:
(1) Perforim or catry out any inhumane or cruef treatient against any animal; or

) Keep, possess, own, conirol, maintain, use or otherwise exercise dominion over any
animal or animals which by reason of noise, odor or sanitary conditions become
offensive to a reasonable and prudent person of ordinary tastes and sensibilities or which
constitute or become a health hazard as determined by the Animal Contro Director, the
Cumberland County Inspections Director or the Cumberland County Environmental
Health Supervisor, as appropriate.

12-26-11 Draft - Cumberland County Animal Control Ordinance
Page 7 of 28



Sec, 3-19. Control of animals required; at large; strays; impoundment; confinement in
season; penalty for biting while at large.

(a) It is unlawful for any owner or person to permit or negligently allow any domestic
animal or livestock fo run at large. Any dog or cat that is not confined as provided in this Chapter, and
not under the actual physical control or restraint of its owner or keepet, shall be deemed to be running at
large. Any such animal found running at farge shall be either:

0 Impounded by an Animal Control Officer at the Department’s shelter subject to being
reclaimed by its owner or keeper in accordance with the Department’s policies; or

(2) In the discretion of the Animal Control Officer, a dog or cat found at large which is
licensed by the county and vaccinated for rabies, except a dangerous dog, as that tertn is
defined in Article IIT of this ordinance, may be released to its owner, upon such terms
and conditions as the Animal Control Officer deems apptopriate.

(b) No impounded animal shall be returned to its owner until any applicable impoundment
and boarding, vaccination, other fees or costs and any penalties are paid. B

() Any impounded animal not claimed by its dw_n_er after a three day holding "period,
exclusive of Sundays and county-observed holidays, shall become the property of the county and shall be
adopted or disposed of in accordance with the Department’s policies.

(d) Every female dog or cat in season (heat) shall be kept confined in such a manner that
such female dog or cat cannot come in contact with other animals, except for controlled breeding
purposes. Female animals picked up by the Animal Control Department which are in season (heat) shall
be kept separate from male animals at all times. S

(e) It shall be a violation of this section for any dog or cat running at large off its owner’s or
keeper’s property to bite any person so as to break such person’s skin. A first offense shall subject the
owner or keeper to a civil penalty of $250. A second offense shall subject such owner or keeper to a civil
penalty of $500. A third or subsequent offense shall subject such owner or keeper to a civil penalty of
$1,000. o e ' )

See. 3-20. - Record.s; diépositiun of animals; adoption,

(a) . An Animal Control Officer, upon receiving any animal for impoundment, shall record
the description, breed, color and sex of the animal and whether or not it is ficensed and the date and
time of impoundment. If the animal is licensed or if the owner is known, the officer shall enter the
name and address of the owner or the county license on the impoundment records. If the owner is known,
the Animal Control Department shall telephone the owner or, if unsuccessful in attempting to telephone
such owner, shail mail tiOtice at the address shown on the Department's records to notify the owner, that
unless reclaimed within seventy-two (72) hours after mailing of notice, Sundays and county-observed
holidays excluded, the animal may be adopted or humanely disposed of by the Department’s shelter.
Attempts to contact the owner will be recorded on the impoundment record.

(b) After the seventy-two (72) hours of impoundment as prescribed above, animals that have
not been reclaimed by the owner thereof shall be adopted or otherwise disposed of in a humane manner
and as required by law. Provided, however, in the discretion of the Animal Control Director, a healthy
animal may be retained for an additional period for the purpose of adoption or transferred to an approved
local animal adoption or rescue agency.

(c) Before any dog or cat is released for adoption from the Department’s sheiter, the adopter

12-29-11 Draft - Cumberland County Animal Control Ordinance
Page 8 of 28



shall pay such fee(s) as may be prescribed therefore in any fee schedule adopted from time to time by the
board of commissioners. Such dog or cat also shall be issued any required rabies vaccination and county
license.

(d) Any employee of the Animal Control Department may adopt one cat and one dog in any
calendar year and such number of other animals as the Animal Control Director may by written policy
prescribe.

(e) There is hereby established a grace period of five (5) days beginning on the day of
adoption and ending at the close of business of the fifth day thereafter (or the first business day which
falls after the fifth day if such fifth day is a Sunday or legal holiday), during which period an animal
adopted from the animal shelter may be returned to the animal shelter without refond for a replacement
animal, conditioned solely upon the presentation of written certification of a licensed veterinarian that the
adopted animal is in poor health. SRR

Sec. 3-21, Redemption of impounded animals; impoundment where no one is present to
care for an animal. : .

(a) An owner shall be entitled to resime possession of his impounded dog or cat or other
small animal kept as a house pet, upon compliance with the vaccination provisions of this Chapter and
payment of any applicable impoundment, boarding, vaccination or other fees. Such dog or cat also shall
be issued any required county license, as provided for in this Chapter, if such dog or cat has not
previously been licensed. Animals four (4) months old and older will be vaccinated for rabies by shelter
rabies vaccinators. New owners of adopted animals less than four (4) months old shall have three (3)
business days from the time that the animal reaches the age of four (4) months, in which to have the
animal vaccinated against rabies and return the proof to the Department’s shelter. Failure to obtain the
required rabies vaccination shall constitute a violation of this section. . -

(b When a law enforcement officer takes a person into custody who is in possession of an
animal, and no other competent person is immediately present at the scene to take cate of the animal, the
animal will be impounded for its welfare. The animal will be impounded at the Department’s shelter until
contact can be made with the animal's owner and an appropriate disposition of the animal determined,
Once an Animal Control Officer makes contact with the owner, the owner will have seventy-two (72)
hours to atrange for the appropriate disposition of the animal. After the seventy-two (72) hour period
expires, the animal shall become the property of the county and shall be disposed of as provided in this
Chapter, ' S

Sec. 3-22. " Spaying or neutering as condition for adoption of dogs and cats; violations,

(a) No dog or cat may be adopted from the animal shelter unless the animal has been
surgically spayed or neutered, or the adopting owner agrees to do have the animal surgically spayed or
neutered in accordance with any time limit imposed by the Animal Control Director.

(b) The Animal Control Director shall implement procedures to enforce this section.

() The failure of any person adopting an impounded animal to comply with this section
shall constitute a violation of this section and shall constitute the forfeiture of the animal to the Animal
Controf Department.

Sec. 3-23. Keeping of animals; mistreatment, abandonment prohibited; care; restraining
of dogs; exercise area for dogs.

(a) All dogs, cats and other small animals kept as house pets shall be housed, fed and

12-29-11 Draft - Cutnberland County Animal Conirol Ordinance
Page 9 of 28



protected from the weather in such a manner as not to create a nuisance.
(b) No person shall willfully or negligently:

(1) Torture, cruelly beat, injure, maim, mutilate or without good cause destroy or kill any
animal, whether wild or tame, belonging to himself or to another;

) Deprive any animal of food, drink or shelter; or
(3) Cause any other person to do any of the above acts.

{c) If an animal is found by any Animal Control Officer to be in one of the above described
conditions in subsection 3-23(a) or {(b), the officer shall take appropriate measures, including civil or
crimina! enforcement, to protect the welfare of the animal. If the Animal Control Officer determines that
a confined animal's life is in immediate danger or the animal has been abandoned, the Animal Control
Officer shall seize such animal if such seizure is not prohibited by applicable law and shall report the
conditions to an appropriate law enforcement agency if seizure is not permitted, The Animal Control
Officer shall leave a notice for the owner or keeper adv1smg why the animal has been taken

(@) No dog, cat or other small animal shall be conﬁned within or on a motor ve]ucle under
such conditions as may endanger the health or well-being of the anlmal mcludlng, but not limited to,
dangerous temperature or lack of adequate food or water.

() No person shall abandon or cause to be abandoned any dog, cat or any other type of
animal, o

t9] Owners and keepers of dogs, cats and other small animals shall provide food, shelter and
medical attention to such ammals mc]udmg but not limlted to the following:

() Sufﬁci_en_t y\_fholesome fpod that is nutritious for the species;
) Fresh, potaﬁie dr_inki_ug water;

3) Méd'icai_at_telltion'to relieve such animals from suffering;
(4) Shade from the sun; and

(5) " Shelter to allow the animal to remain dry and protected from the elements. Such shelter
shall be fully enclosed on three (3) sides, roofed and have a solid floor. The entrance to
the shelter shall be flexible to allow the animal's entry and exit, and sturdy enough to
block entry of wind or rain. The shelter shall be small enough to retain the animal's body
heat and large enough to allow the animal to stand and turn comfortably. The enclosure
shall be structurally sound and in good repair.

(2) It shall be unlawful to tether a dog except in accordance with this subsection.

(1) No dog shall be tethered outdoors unless the keeper or owner of the dog is holding the
tether.

2) It shall be an affirmative defense to a violation of this subsection that the tethering is
required to protect the safety or welfare of a person or the dog, provided that the keeper
or owner of the dog acquires a permit from the Animal Control Director for the
temporary tethering of a dog while acquiring kennels or fencing,

12-29-11 Draft - Cumberland County Animal Control Ordinance
Page 10 of 28



3)

)

®)

(h)

The provisions of this subsection (g) shall not apply to a temporary tether:

() During a lawful animal event, veterinary treatiment, grooming, training, or law
enforcement activity; or

()] To a keeper or owner walking a dog with a hand-held leash, or during lawtul
hunting activitics if reasonably necessary for the safety of the dog, or while a
dog is actively engaged in shepherding or herding livestock; or

(c) When meeting the requirements of a camping or recreation facility; or
(@) When the animal's caretaker is outside and within eyesight of the animal; or

(e) After taking possession of a dog that appears to be a stray dog and after having
advised the Animal Control Department of the stray.

The provisions of subsections (g)(2) and (3) above shall apply only if:

(a) The tether is not placed directly round the dog's neck and is att.iched toa
properly fitting collar or harness of nylon or leather worn by the dog; and

(b) The weight of the tether does not exceed.r'hcére than one-tenth of the dog's body
weight; and o

(c) The tether is unlikely to become tangled or twisted; and

(d) The tether is arranged to be free of éﬁy obstacles which may limit the moveable
tength of the tether; and '

(e) ‘The dog is tethered in a manner that permits access to necessary shelter and
water. : :

Any dog that remains tethered in violation of this subsection for more than fourteen (14)
days after the owner receives a notice of violation may be seized by an Animal Control
Officer or law enforcement officer and impounded at the Department’s shelter. If the
dog’s owner does not show that an adequate confinement enclosure complying with the
requirements of this ordinance has been installed on the owner’s property within 72

“hours of the impoundment, exclusive of Sundays and county government holidays, the

dog shall be deemed to have been forfeited to the county and shall be disposed of in
accordance with the Department’s policy.

Any dog confined within a fenced yard or run must have an adequate space for exercise.

Provided, however, that where dogs are kept or housed on property without a fenced yard and such dogs
are kept in an enclosure or run, such enclosure or run shall provide adequate space for exercise. Such an
enclosure or run shall be constructed of chain lfink or similar type of materials with all four sides
enclosed. The enclosure shall be of sufficient height to prevent the dog from escaping from such
enclosure. The top of such enclosure shall be sufficiently covered to provide the dog with adequate shade
and protection from the elements,

Sec. 3-24,

(2)

Dead animal pickup; relinquishing animals to the shelter.

Dead animals may be picked up from residences by waste/ sanitation haulers as provided

by the Cumbertand County Solid Waste Department's policies as in effect from time to time.

12-29-11 Draft - Cumberland County Anitnal Control Ordinance
Page 11 of 28



(b) Owners may relinquish their animals to the Department’s shelter provided the owner
signs an impoundment card releasing possession of the animal to the shelter. Once the animal is released
to the shelter, the animal shall become the property of the county and may be adopted or humanely
disposed of in accordance with the Department’s policies.

Sec, 3-25. Apprehension of wild dogs.
If the Animal Control Director shall determine that:

(1) A dog or dogs are running wild in any area within the jurisdiction of this ordinance;
such dogs are feral and do not have an owner, keeper or custodian; such dogs appear not
to have been vaccinated for rabies because such dogs are not wearing current and valid
rabies tags; such dogs are substantially interfering with the use and enjoyment of
property or the conduct of business, or are harassing or threatening persons; and that
such dogs cannot after extraordinary effort be apprehended; or. .

(2) an animal or animals are running wild and appear to be rabid or terminally diseased,
present an imminent threat to any person ot fo livestock or domestic pets, or are
harassing and threatening persons, and cannot be apprehended without extraordinary
effort; :

then the Director shall be authorized to cause deadly force to be used to humanely euthanize said dogs or
wild animals. Prior to making such a determination, in the case of wild dogs, the Director shall have
documented that persistent and repeated efforts to apprehend such dogs through use of traps, baited food,
and franquilizer darts have been ineffective. After making such a determination, the Animal Control
Director may: RS '

D Authorize any Animal Control Officer that has, in the discretion of the Animal
Control Director, received appropriate training and certification in firearms to use
deadly force; or

2) Request assisfan_ce from the Sheriff or from appropriate municipal police authorities in
order that the application of deadly force shall be effected by a sworn law enforcement
“officer that has a marksman rating and/or qualification; or

3) Seek the services of any private business, corporation, organization or other
" governmental organization or agency as may be approved by the County Manager for the
-application of deadly force.

If such deadly force is proposed.{o be effected, the Animal Control Director shall take every precaution
to assure the safety of persons and property in the area within which the dogs or animals are running
wild. -

Sec. 3-26. Regulation of the number of dogs and cats which may be kept on certain premises,

(a) No more than three (3) dogs or cats, or combination of dogs and cats, more than five (5)
months of age shall be owned, possessed, kept, harbored, or maintained at any premises located in any
area with a zoning classification for single-family, residential lots of 20,000 square feet or less (R20 or
less density).

(3] No more than two (2) dogs or cats, or combination of dogs and cats, more than five (5)
months of age shall be owned, possessed, kept, harbored, or maintained at any premises located in any
area with a zoning classification for multifamily residential housing.

12-29-11 Draft - Cumberland County Animal Control Ordinance
Page 12 of 28



(c) In any area in which the applicable zoning regulations are more restrictive than the
requirements of this section, the zoning regulations shall control.

(@ This section shall not be construed to limit the right of any landlord to impose more
restrictive limits on the number of pets which may be possessed at any leased premises.

Sec. 3-27 through Sec. 3-29.  Reserved.

ARTICLE III. DANGEROUS DOGS

See. 3-30. Definitions.

For the purposes of this article, the following words and phrasés shall have the following
meanings: S .

“Attack by a dog” means any behavior or action _by'é dog which could reasonably be expected to
cause physical injury to a person or domestic animal, to include biting, felling or toppling, tearing of
clothing, or provoking flight to escape attack. -

“Bite by a dog” means any seizing, gripping or grasping, 1o matter how slight or momentary bya
dog between its jaws of the body parts of a person or domestic animal, so as to cause physical injury to
such person or domestic animal. -

“Dangerous dog” means any of the following dogs_:
(1 A dog that without provocation has killed or inﬂict'ec.i. severe injury on a person; or
2) A dog that has been determined as provided herein to be potentially dangerous; or

3) A dog that is oiyiled ot harbored primarily, or in part, for the purpose of dog fighting or a
- dog trained for dog fighting, '

“Dog” means a cloniés_ticated animal (canis familiaris) of the Canidae family; provided that no
wild specie of the Canidae family, such as a wolf, fox or coyote, shall be considered a domesticated
animal, even though raised by humans in domestic surroundings.

“Guard dog” means a dog trained by a skilled trainer to recognized security industry or other
reasonable standards and presently used under the control of trained handlers to protect persons and

property.

“Law enforcement dog” means a dog, trained for police work to recognized law enforcement
standards and presently used by and under the control of a law enforcement officer to cairy out the faw
enforcement officet's ofticial duties.

“Lawful hunt” means a hunt for lawful game conducted on private or public property with the
consent of the owner or custodian of the property by a person with a valid license (if required) during the
lawful season for the game concerned using dogs customarily employed and suitable for such game.

“Owner of a dog” or “owning a dog” means any person or legal entity that has a possessory
property right in a dog, including the harborer or keeper of a dog with the consent of the owner or of a
dog that has been abandoned by or escaped the custody of its owner.

12-29-11 Draft - Cumberfand County Animal Control Ordinance
Page 13 of 28



“Owner or keeper's real property” means any real property owned or leased by the owner or
keeper of the dog, not including any public right-of-way or a common area of a condominium, apartment
complex, or townhouse development.

“Potentially dangerous dog” means a dog that had been determined, as provided herein, to have:
¢)) Inflicted a bite on a person that required medical care more than first aid,

(2) Kilted ot inflicted injury upon a domestic animal when not on the real property of
the owner of the dog; or

3) Attacked a person or approached a person in an area of the keeper's property open
and accessible to invitees, or when not on the owner's property, in a vicious or
terrorizing manner in an apparent attitude of attack.

“Severe injury” means any physical injury that lesults in bloken bones or dlsﬁguung lacerations
or requires cosmetic surgery or hospitalization. : :

“Territorial jurisdiction of Cumberland County” means all territory within the boundal ies of the
County of Cumberland, North Carolina, except the incorporated area of a mun:czpahty, unless such
municipality has consented to the application and enforcement of tlns Chapter in its jurisdiction.

Sec. 3-31. Application of erdinance; exceptions.
The provisions of this Article do not apply to:

(1) A law enforcement dog or guard dog being used by a law enforcement officer or
a bona fide professional security guard while in the performance of official duties or
professional responsibilities;

) A dog béiﬁg used in a'.iawful hunt;

3) A dog where the i 1n_|u1y or damage inflicted by the dog was sustained by a domestic

- animal while the dog was working as a hunting dog, herding dog, or pnedatcn control dog

on the property of, or under control of its owner, and the damage or injury was to a
species or a type domestic animal appropriate to the work of the dog; or

(4).' A dog where the mjmy inflicted by the dog was sustained by a person who at the time of
‘the injury, was tormenting, abusing, or cruelly treating the dog, or had tormented,
abused, or cruelly treated the dog, or was committing or attempting to commit a crime.

See, 3-32, Reporting requirements.

{a) Reporting required. An owner of a dog that has attacked or bitten a person or domestic
animal, a victim of an attack or biting by a dog, the owner of any domestic animal that has been attacked
or bitten by a dog, any person witnessing such an attack or biting, a veterinarian treating a domestic
animal for such an attack or biting, or a health care professional treating a person for such an attack or
biting, shall report the following events to the Animal Control Department within three (3) business days
after the event has occurred:

() Any attack or biting by a dog upon any person or domestic anima; or

) The transfer, gift, sale or other conveyance of ownership or possession of a dangerous or

12-29-11 Draft - Cumberland County Animal Control Ordinance
Page 14 of 28



potentially dangerous dog, its confinement in a veterinary facility, its removal from the
territorial jurisdiction of the county, or its death.

(b) Report data required. The data required in the report and the format thereof shall be as
set forth in administrative procedures established by the Animal Control Director.

Sec. 3-33. Determination that a dog is potentially dangerous; appeals.

(a) Generally. Upon receipt of a report submitted in accordance with subsection 3-32, or
upon the receipt of any other complaint, or when he has reasonable suspicion thata dog is potentially
dangerous, the Director or his designee shall make a determination whether or not such dog is a
potentially dangerous dog. Any determination that a dog is potentially dangerous shall be made in a
writing stating the facts relied upon by the Director to make his determination. The written declaration
shall be personally delivered to the owner of the subject dog or shall be mailed by certified mail, return
receipt requested, to the owner. If the determination is made that the subject dog is potentially dangerous,
the written determination shall order compliance with the appropriate provisions of this Article and the
Director may impose reasonable conditions to maintain the public health and safety. ‘The Director may
pursue such other civil or criminal penalties and remedies as authorized by this Chapter or state law.

b) If, at any time after the reccipt of any report or complaint made pursuant to section 3-32,
the Director determines that the conditions under which the subject dog is being kept or confined do not
adequately protect the public health or safety, the Director shall require that the subject dog be
impounded at the Department's shelter until completion of the investigation and any appeal of the
decision of the Director. B L

(c) Appeals from determinations,

(1) The owner of any dog determined by the Director to be potentiaily dangerous
may appeal the decision of the Director to the Appeal Board within three (3) business
days of receiving notice of the determination. Appeal to the Appeal Board may be taken
by filing written objections to the Director’s determination with the Clerk for the Appeal
Board. 2 -

) “The Appe_al Board shall schedule and hear such appeal within ten (10) days of the filing
of the written objections or at such later time as the appellant consents.

3 The vote of the Appeal Board shall be taken, and the announcement of its decision shall
*pe made, in an open public meeting. A written statement of the decision of the Appeal
Board shall be delivered to the Director and the appellant. The notice shall be sent by
certified mail, return receipt requested, and filed concurrently with the Director and the
Cumberland Counfy Attorney.
(d) An appeal hearing before the Appeal Board shall be conducted as follows:

(1) The hearing shall be subject to the Open Meetings Law, and the required notice shall be
posted and given as applicable;

2) The Chairperson of the Appeal Board shall preside at the hearing;
3) The Director shall be represented by the County Attorney;

€)) The County Attorney shall present the Director’s case;

12-29-11 Draft - Cumberland County Animal Control Ordinance
Page 15 of 28



&) The appellant may be represented by an attorney;

(6) The Director and the appellant may make any statemnents, present any evidence, or offer
any witnesses on their behalf, on any relevant issue;

N The Chairperson of the Appeal Board shall rule on the admissibility of any evidence and
on any procedural issues that might arise;

it The Director and the appellant shall be entitled to cross-examine any witnesses;
(9) The hearing shall be quasi-judicial in nature and all testimony shall be under oath;
(10)  The appellant shall be entitled to obtain a transcript of the proceeding at his own cost;

(11)  the Appeal Board shall announce its decision at an open meetmg and render it in writing
as expeditiously as possible at or following the hearing. Its decision shall contain
findings of fact and conclusions in support of its decision. -

(e) The purpose of the hearing before the Appeal Board shall be to detelmme whether or not
the determination of the Director is in the best interests of the public health, safety and welfale

€3] The function of the Appeal Board shall be to affirm, reverse, or modify the determination
of the Director which has been appealed Any conditions imposed by the Appeal Board shall be
reasonable, relevant to the issues in the matter, and have the effect of promotmg the public health, safety
and welfare. :

(g The hearing shall be administrative in na_turé and the decision of the Appeal Board shall
be final

Sec, 3-34, Registratio_n requiréd.

(a) Generally. Any person owning a dangerous dog as defined by this Chapter or Chapter 67
of the General Statutes, shall register such dog with the Animal Control Department within five (5) days
of such event which established the dog to be dangerous or may, in lieu of any hearing, register such dog

voluntarily, which shall constitute an admlssmn and final determination that the dog is dangerous.

(b) .. Permanent identification malk required. Each dog registered pursuant to this section shall
be assigned a registration number by the Animal Control Department, which shall be affixed to the dog
by permanent chip implant, at thc expense of its owner. No person shall remove such identification once
it is assigned and afﬁxed

Sec. 3-35. Permlt r_e_quired.

(a) Generally. After registration of a dangerous dog or after a final determination that such
dog is potentially dangerous in accordance with this Chapter or Chapter 67 of the General Statutes, no
person shall own such dog thereafter within the territorial jurisdiction of this Chapter without applying
for and obtaining a permit from the Animal Confrol Department.

b Issuance of permit. The Animal Control Department shall issue a permit for a dangerous
dog only upon submission of a complete, verified application, payment of the permit fee and a finding by
the Director or his designee that:

(1 The required conditions for keeping and housing the dog and other public health and

12-29-11 Draft - Cumberland County Animal Control Ordinance
Page 16 of 28



safety protective measures are in effect, and

2) The dog for which a permit is issued does not pose an unreasonable threat to the public
health, safety and general welfare if the owner shall comply with the provisions of this
Article and the conditions of the permit.

() Issuance of a permit shall be conditioned on continued compliance with the provisions of
this Article and other provisions of state law, on continued compliance with and maintenance of the
conditions for housing the dog and public safety set forth in the permit, and any special conditions the
Director may deem reasonably necessary to protect the public health, safety and welfare in view of the
particular circumstances and history of the dog for which the permit is issued.

{d) Temporary permits. Following the registration of a dangerous dog or the impoundment
of a dog declared to be potentially dangerous, upon application therefore and for good cause, the Director
may issue a temporary permit allowing the owner of a registered dangerous dog or a dog declared to be
potentially dangerous to retain possession of such dog or to confine such dog at a veterinary facility or
kennel approved by the Director. The Director may also issue-a témporary permit to allow the transport
of a dangerous or potentially dangerous dog from the terriforial jurisdiction of this Chapter. A temporary
permit shall be issued subject to the same conditions to which a regular permit is subject and to any other
conditions the Director may deem necessary to protect the public health, safety and welfare consistent
with the provisions of this Article. A temporary permit shail be valid only until the earlier of its
expiration, revocation or the issuance or denial of a permit under the provisions of this section,

(e) Term of permits and renewal thereof. No permit shall be issued under this section fora
term of more than three (3) years but may, in the Director’s discretion, be issued for a shorter period.
Permits must be renewed, subject to the same terms and conditions required for initial permits.

® Revocation of permits. The Director may, upon notice and hearing and for good cause
shown, revoke any permit or modify any terms, conditions or provisions thereof. If the Director deems it
necessary to protect the public health or safety from any imminent threat or danger thereto, he may,
without hearing, suspend any permit or any portion thereof for not more than thirty (30) days. Good
cause for revocation or modification of a permit shall include, without limitation, violation of or failure to
comply with any provision of this Article or with any term, condition or provision of a permit.

(2) Inspections. :The Direét_or shall cause periodic inspections to be made of the premises of
the owner of a permitted dangerous or potentially dangerous dog to assure compliance with the
provisions of this Article and the applicable permit.

(h) Tnsurance. Every person owning a dangerous dog, as determined in accordance with this
Atticle or Chapter 67 of the General Statutes, shall purchase and maintain a policy of liability insurance
covering any injury or property damage caused by the dog. Minimum policy limits shall be Two Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($200,000.00) for personal injury or property damage, per occurrence. Such owner
shall cause a cettificate or declaration of insurance to be furnished to the Director annually. Every

calendar day that the required insurance is not in full force and effect shall constitute a violation of this
Article.

Sec. 3-36. Regulation of dangerous dogs; security and restraint requirements.

No person shall own a dangerous dog except in compliance with all provisions of this Article, including
the following regulations:

(1) While on the real property of its owner, such dog shall be kept, secured and restrained as

12-29-11 Draft - Cumberland County Animal Control Ordinance
Page 17 of 28



follows:

(a) In a building with doors, windows and other exits securely fastened shut and
under the supervision and control of a responsible, capable adult person; or

(b) Securely kept in a locked enclosure which has secure sides, top and bottom and
is constructed out of materials and in a manner which will preclude escape by the
dog and prevent entry by small children; or

(c) While outside a building or enclosure desctibed above, securely leashed with a
leash no longer than four (4) feet in length in the hands of and under the control
of a responsible competent person capable of such control and muzzled by a
muzzling device sufficient to prevent such dog from biting persons or other
animals. ' -

2) Such dog shall only be removed from the real pr_opefty of its owner as follows:

(a) For transportation to and from a Vetei'inarian or the Department’s shelter; or
(b) For its permanent removal from ﬂae'territoria_l jurisdiction of this Chapter; or
{c) To provide bona fide exercise necessal'f- for its continued good health.

) While off its owner’s real property such dog shall be securely leashed with a leash no
longer than four (4) feet in length in the hands of and under the control of a responsible
competent person capable of such control and muzzled by a muzzling device sufficient to
prevent such dog from biting persons or other animals..

@ Notwithstanding the foregoing, no person shall own a dangerous dog that has killed a
person, except in the care and custody of a veterinarian for the purposes of treatment or
quarantine; or in the custody of the Department’s shelter pending disposition in
accordance with the provisions of this Chapter, the Department’s policies, or the order of
any court. . '

(5) Sigllage. ‘The owner of a dangerous dog shall erect a sign with dimensions of at least 2' x
: 2' on the enclosure housing such dog which shall read:

BEWARE OF DOG
~ THIS DOG IS DANGEROUS
STAY AWAY!
Sec. 3-37. Impouhdmént of dangerous dogs.
(a) Apprehension and surrender. Upon an initial determination of a dog as potentially

dangerous or upon registration of a dog to be dangerous, or if the Director has reasonable suspicion to
believe that a dangerous, or potentially dangerous dog is being kept or harbored within the territorial
jurisdiction of this Chapter in violation of it or of a permit issued hereunder, Animal Control Officers and
law enforcement officers of Cumberland County and of any municipality subject to this Chapter shall
impound such dog. Tt shalil be a violation of this Article to fail or refuse to surrender such dog to such
officers upon their lawful demand. The officer impounding such a dog shall deliver the same to the
Department’s shelter.

(b) Surrender. Hiding, removing or failing to surrender a dangerous or potentially dangerous

12-29-11 Draft - Cumberland County Animal Contro! Ordinance
Page 18 of 28



dog, or impeding any investigation concerning the same shall be a violation of this Article.

(c) Confinement, A dog impounded by or surrendered to an Animal Control Officer or law
enforcement officer as provided herein shall be confined in the Department s shelter or, npon request of
the owner hereunder, and at such person's expensc, at a private veterinary facility or kennel approved by
the Director, subject to the following conditions:

H Costs of impoundment. Impoundment shall be at the expense of the owner of the dog.
Costs of impoundment at the Department’s shelter shall be paid by the person liable
therefore at the daily rate. The costs of impoundment at a veterinary facility or kennel
shall be paid by the person liable therefore pursuant to the terms of the agreement
between such person and the proprietor of such facility or kennel. In no event shall
Cumberland County or any municipality subject to this Chaptel be liable for or pay for
impoundment at such private facility or kennel, :

2) Release from impoundment. No such dog shall be 1eleased from impoundment as
provided herein except upon registration of such dog and issuance of a permit or
temporary permit allowing such release. No such dog shall be released from the
Department’s shelter until costs of confinement of such dog, any registration and permit
fees for such dog, and any civil penalties assessed in connect:on with such dog have been
paid in full. :

3) Disposition of unclaimed or abandoned dogs. The foliowmg dogs impounded at the
Department’s shelter pursuant to this Article shall be deemed abandoned and shail be
disposed of in accordance with the p10v1smns of this Chapter and the rules and
regulations of the Department: :

(a) Any dog which remains unclaimed by'if_s owner for a period more than ten
(10) days or a period of lawful quarantine, whichever is longer; and

(b) Any dog claimed by its owner which is confined for a period in excess of ten
(10) days, or a period or lawful quarantine, whichever is longer, during which no
~ application has been made for a permit or temporary permit; provided, however,
“the Director shall extend such time upon a showing of justifiable delay in such
action by the owner.

Sec. 3-38. . Violations, penélties and other remedies.

(a) V:olatlons Each act or conduct prohibited by this Article and each failure to comply
with a mandatory provision heleby and each day's continuing failure to comply shall constitute a separate
and distinct offense.

(b) State law violations.

() Nothing in this Chapter shall be constructed to prevent an Animal Control
Officer or any other person from pursuing remedies under Chapter 67, Article
IA, of the North Carolina General Statutes.

(2) The Director or his designee is designated as the person responsible for making
the determination required under Section 67-4.1(c) of the North Carolina
General Statutes. In making such determinations, the Director or his designee
shall follow the procedure set forth in this Article.

12-29-1} Draft - Cumberland County Animal Control Ordinance
Page 19 of 28



Sec. 3-39.

(a)

3) The Dangerous Dog Appeal Board is designated as the appellate board to hear
appeals of determinations made pursuant to N.C.G.S., Section 67-4.1(c).

Administrative provisions.

Responsibility. The Director shall administer and enforce this Article and shall

promulgate rules and regulations for such administration and enforcement as may be necessary or
desirable to such end.

(b)

Authority to enter upon premises. Animal Control Officers shall have authority to enter

into and inspect any premises, dwellings, rooming units, barns and other outbuildings, any part of the
curtilage thereof, or any yard or other enclosure to:

M

@

()
(4)
(c)

Conduct any investigation of a dog alieged or suspected of being potentially dangerous
or dangerous, or '

Apprehend a dog determined to be potentially dangerous or dangerous or as to which
there is reasonable suspicion to believe is potentially dangerous or dangerous, or

Investigate any violation of this Article, or _
Serve a citation upon a person for violation of this A_rticie.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, an Animal Control Ofﬁce_._r shall only make such entry

upon consent, pursuant to an administrative search warrant under G.S. 15-27.2, or otherwise as

authorized by law.

@
(1

@

3

Authority to immobilize or kiil a dang’erdus or potentially dangerous dog.

If in the course of investigating, apprehending or otherwise taking custody of a
potentially dangerous or dangerous dog, or a dog as to which there is reasonable
suspicion to believe is potentially dangerous ot dangerous, such dog is not
securely restrained and an Animal Control Officer or a law enforcement officer has

~ reasonable cause to believe the dog poses an imminent risk of serious physical injury or

death to any person or domestic animal, said officer shall have authority to render such
dog immobile by means of tranquilizers or other safe drugs or, if that is not safely or
timely possible under the circumstances, then the officer may humanely dispose of said

dog,.

If a potentially dangerous or dangerous dog impounded in the Department’s shelter
cannot be cared for or handled without risk of serious physical injury or death to persons
caring for or handling such dog or to other animals, the Department shall render such dog
immobile by means of tranquilizers or other safe drugs or, if that is not safely or timely
possible under the circumstances, then the Department may humanely dispose of said
dog.

The Animal Control Department may humanely dispose of any dog being investigated
under the provisions of this Article at the request of or with the consent of its owner.

12-29-11 Draft - Cumberland County Animal Control Ordinance
Page 20 of 28



ARTICLE IV. RABIES CONTROIL AND ANIMAL BITES
Sec, 3-40. Rabies control,

{a) Enforcement authority. The Animal Control Director and the Cumberland County
Health Director are authorized to enforce the rabies control provisions in Part 6 of Chapter 130A of the
North Carolina General Statutes and are further anthorized to implement any reasonable administrative
procedures necessary to enforce this state law locally.

(b) Impoundment term. The impoundment period for animals held pursuant to this section
shall be seventy-two (72) hours, excluding Sundays and legal holidays.

(c) Compliance with rabies law. If shall be unlawful for any anlmal owner or other person fo
fail to comply with the state laws relating to the control of rabies.

(d) Provisions supplementary to state law. It is the pur pbse of this section to supplement the
state laws by providing a procedure for the enforcement of state laws relating to lables control, in
addition to the criminal penalties provided by the state law. -

(e) Vaccination required It shali be uniawfulifor an owner or keeper to fail to provide current
vaccination against rabies (hydrophobia) for any dog or cat four (4) months of age or older. Should the
County Health Director deem it necessary that other pets be vaccinated in order to prevent a threatened
rabies epidemic or conirol an existing rabies epidemic, it shall be unlawful for an owner or keeper to fail
to provide vaccination for that pet.

) Vaccination schedule. A rabies vaccination shall de deemed current for a dog or cat if the
first two (2) doses of vaccine are administered twelve (12} months apart and each subsequent booster
dose of vaccine is administered according to the manufacturer's recommended schedule.

(g) Persons to administer. All rabies vaccines shall be administered by a licensed
veterinarian or a certified 1ables vaccinator. :

(h) Owner or keeper to be lssued rabies tag. Upon vaccination pursuant to this section, the
owner or keeper of the dog or cat-that has been vaccinated shall be issued a rabies tag stamped with a
number and the yard for which issued and a rabies vaccination certificate.

(i) . Unlawful for dog or cat not to wear rabies tag. It shall be unlawfut for any dog or cat
owner or keeper to fail to provide the dog or cat with a collar or harness to which a current rabies tag
issued under this section is securely attached. The collar or harness, with the attached tag, must be worn
at all times the animal is off its owner’s property.

Gy Untagged dog or cat subject to impoundment. In addition to all other penalties prescribed
by law, a dog or cat may immediately be impounded in accordance with the provisions of this section if it
is found off its owner’s or keeper’s property not wearing a currently valid rabies tag.

(k) Unlawfu! to switch rabies tag. It shall be unlawful for any person to use for any animal a
rabies vaccination tag issued for an animal other than the one assigned the tag.

H Dogs or cats brought into County. All dogs or cats shipped or otherwise brought into the
territorial jurisdiction of this Chapter, except for exhibition purposes where the dogs or cats are confined
and not permitted to run at large, shall be securely confined and vaccinated within one (1) week after
entry, and shall remain confined for two (2) additional weeks after vaccination, unless accompanied by a
certificate issued by a licensed veterinarian showing the dog or cat is apparently free from rabies and has

12-29-11 Draft - Cumberland County Animal Control Ordinance
Page 21 0f28



not been exposed to rabies and that the dog or cat has received a proper dose of rabies vaccine not more
than six (6) months prior to the date of issuing the certificate.

(m)  Animals exposed to rabies.

(1) If the Animal Control Director determines that an animal has not been vaccinated against
rabies at least twenty-eight (28) days prior to being exposed to rabies from a suspected
rabid animal, the animal shall be immediately euthanized unless the owner or keeper
agrees to strict isolation of the animal at a veterinary hospital for a period of six (6)
months at the owner's or keeper's expense.

2) If the Animal Contro! Director determines that an animal with a current rabies
vaccination has been exposed to rabies from a suspected rabid animal, it shall be
revaccinated and returned to the owner or keeper who shall be responsible for the cost of
the rabies vaccination. - ;

(n) Health Director may declare quarantine. When reports indicate a positive diagnosis of
rabies, to the extent that the lives of persons are endangered, the County Health Director may declare a
county-wide quarantine for such period of time as he deems necessary. Once such emergency
quarantine is declared, no dog or cat may be taken or shipped from the county without written permission
of the County Health Director. During such quarantine, the County Health Director, the Animal Conrol
Director, law enforcement officers, or other persons duly authorized by the County Health Director or
Animal Control Director may seize and impound any dog or cat running at large in the county. During
the quarantine period the County Health Director shall be empowered to provide for a program of mass
immunization by the establishment of temporary emergency rabies vaccination facilities strategically
located throughout the county. If additional confirmed cases of rabies occur during the quarantine period,
the County Health Director in his discretion may extend the quarantine period.

{0) Carcass to be surrendered to Health Department. The carcass of any animal suspected of
dying of rabies, or dying while under observation for rabies, shall be submitted to the County Health
Department for the implementation of appropriate diagnostic procedures

(p) Unlawful to kill or release animal undér observation. It shall be unlawful for any person
to kill ot release any animal under observation for rabies, any animal under observation for biting a
human, or to remove such animal from the county without written permission from the County Health
Ditector, provided that a licensed veterinarian or the County Health Director or other person duly
authorized by the County Health Director, may authorize any animal to be killed for rabies diagnosis.

(@ Unlawful to fail to surrender animal. Tt shall be unlawful for any person to fail or refuse
to surrender any animal for confinement or destruction as required in this Article, when demand is made
therefore by the County Health Director, the Animal Control Director or any law enforcement officer.

® Unlawful to fail to provide proof of vaccination. It shall be unlawful for any person to
fail or refuse to provide proof of rabies vaccination for any animal that they own or confrol when request
is made therefore by the Animal Control Director or his designee, the County Health Director or his
designee, or any sworn faw enforcement officer.

(s) Animals subject to impoundment. Any animal which appears to be lost, stray, unwanted,
not wearing a currently valid tax tag or a currently valid rabies vaccination tag as required by state law or
this section, or not under restraint in violation of this Chapter, may be seized, impounded and confined in
a humane manner in the Department’s shelter. Any dog or cat that has bitten or scratched a human must
be quarantined for ten (10) days, either at the home of its owner or keeper, if an Animal Control Officer
determines that the public health and safety shall be reasonably maintained by such quarantine, or

12-29-11 Draft - Cumberland County Animal Control Ordinance
Page 22 of 28



otherwise in the Department’s shelter or in a veterinary hospital at such owner’s or keeper's expense. If
such dog or cat is quarantined at the home of its owner or keeper and escapes, any Animal Control
Officer shall impound such dog or cat at the Department’s shelter for ten (10) days.

{t) Owner liable. Impoundment of such animal shall not relieve the owner/keeper thereof
from any penalty which may be imposed for viclation of this section.

(u) The County Health Director shall direct the disposition of any animal found to be
infected with rabies.

Sec. 3-41, Reports of bite cases; report by veterinarian,

(a) Every physician, veterinarian or health care provider shall report to the Animal Control
Director the names and addresses of persons treated for bites and scratches inflicted by animals that break
the skin, together with such other information as will be helpful in rabies control,

(b) Every licensed veterinarian shall report to the Animal Control Diréctor his diagnosis of
any animal observed by him to be a suspect rabid animal. '

See. 3-42, Records.
The Animal Control Director shall keep or cause to be kept

(O an accurate and detailed record of the licensing, impounding and disposition of all live
animals, fowl and domestic birds coming into his custody and any dead dogs or cats
picked up that possess rabies tags or county license; and

@) an accurate and detailed record of all bite cases reported to him, with a complete report
of the investigation or disposition of each case.

Sec, 3-43 Interference,

No person shall interfere with, hinder, delay or obstruct any Animal Control Officer or authorized
representative of the county in the performance of any duty under this Article or seek to release any
animal in the custody of the Animal Control Department or its sheltér impounded putsuant to this Article,
except as provided by law. '

Sec. 3-44 through Sec. 3-49. Reserved.
ARTICLE V. LICENSING OF DOGS AND CATS

Sec, 3-30, License for dogs and cats,

Tt shail be unlawful for any person to own, possess or have under his control any dogs or cats, or
any combination thereof, over four (4) months of age, without obtaining an annual privilege license for
ecach such animal from the Cumberland County Tax Administrator. Every person owning, possessing or
having under their control any dog or cat shall properly list such dog or cat annually with the Cumberland
County Tax Administrator during the month of January to obtain a county license. Failure fo list as
provided herein shall be a violation of this Article and shail subject the offender to a civil penalty in the
amount of $100.00 per dog or cat not listed annually as provided herein. Each privilege license issued
shall be for a calendar year. The Tax Administrator may delegate authority to issue such licenses to the

12-29-11 Draft - Cumberland County Animal Contro! Ordinance
Page 23 of 28



Animal Control Department or to licensed veterinatians within the County duly registered for such
purpose with the Tax Administrator upon such terms and conditions, including payment of a processing
fee, as he deems advisable.

Sec, 3-51. Terms of license; exemption.

(a) The license issued under this Article shall be renewed every year, upon proof of rabies
vaccination.

{b) County residents who are sixty-five (65) years of age or older may obtain a permanent

license for up to three cats or dogs, or any combination thereof, at no cost. County residents may obtain a
permanent license at no cost for a bona fide seeing-eye or aid dog.

See. 3-52. Issuance of records.

(a) Upon issuance of a license, a tag shall be issued for each dog and cat so licensed. The tag
shall be of durable material and shall be designed to be easily fastened or riveted to the animal’s collar or
harness, The tag shall bear a number registered with the Tax Administrator or the Animal Control
Department. g P

(b) The Tax Administrator shall maintain records of Ii_c_en's.éd dogs and cats and such records
shall be open to public inspection.

Sec. 3-53. Fastening of tags to collar or harness.

Each person who owns or maintains a dog or cat that is primarily kept, kenneled or otherwise
located in the county shall affix to such dog or cat the following identification:

) a durable tag securely affixed to a collar or harness which is securely buckled or
otherwise securely joined so that it cannot be removed unless unbuckled; the tag shall
contain the name and address of the owner of the dog or cat or a number registered
with the Animal Control Department; or -

@ E an:imp]ant(_:d connpilte_x' chip capable of being scanned by a chip reader.
Sec. 3-54. License fee in a_dditio'n'.to other fees.

The privilege license fee shall be in addition to any fee in the fee schedule under this Chapter.
Seec. 3-55. Use of revenues collected from license fees.

The revenues collected for the licensing or adoption of dogs and cats shall be specifically
expended for physical improvements to the animal shelter or the equipment of the Animal Control
Department, for the cost of administration and enforcement of this Chapter, and for costs assaciated with
public education programs and activities.

Sec, 3-56. Transfer of cats and dogs.

(a) When ownership of a dog or cat is transferred within the county's jurisdiction, the new
owner will have thirty days to obtain a new privilege license for the animal.

(b) When ownership of a dog which has been declared dangerous or potentially dangerous
under Article Tif of this Chapter is transferred within the county's jurisdiction, the previous owner shall

12-29-11 Draft - Cumberland County Animal Control Ordinance
Page 24 of 28



within three (3) business days notify the Animal Control Department and provide the name and address
of the new owner. The new owner shall:

1 limmediately register the dog with the Animal Control Department; and

(2) Insurc that the requirements of this Chapter for maintaining a dangerous or
potentially dangerous dog are complied with prior to the dog being relocated to the new
owner's property.

Sec. 3-57. Non-applicability of Article.

The provisions of this Article shall not apply to cats or dogs in the custody of a veterinarian, or
whose owners are non-residents visiting in the county for a period not exceeding thirty (30) consecutive
days. o

See. 3-58 - 3-59. Reserved.

ARTICLE VI INJURED ANIMAL STABILIZATION FUND .

Sec. 3-60. Control of injured animals; stabilization fund; v _

(a) Any Animal Control Officer or law enforcement officer is authorized to take possession
of any seriously injured dog, cat, wildlife, livestock, bird or other animal which has suffered a painful and
potentially mortal injury and which is found in any location open or accessible to the public, any public
or private vehicular right of way, or apparently off the property of its owner. Any such animal which
does not have a current rabies tag or identification tag shall be conclusively presumed abandoned for
purposes of this Article. . ' -

(b) Any Animal Control Officer or law enforcement officer finding any such animal shall
make reasonable efforts to locate the owner of any such animal. If the owner is promptly located, the
owner shall immediately seek veterinary care of the animal or shall authorize such officer to humanely
cuthanize such animal. I the owner cannot be promptly located or contacted, the Animal Control Officer
ot law enforcement officer is authorized, in his or her discretion, to humanely euthanize such animal in
an emergency situation where safe, humane transport of the animal is not possible, or promptly transport
such animal to a veterinarian participating in the Injured Animal Stabilization Fund for stabilization of
such animal's injuries. Every owner of any animal so found shall conclusively be presumed to have
irrevocably appointed any such officer, or veterinarian participating in the Injured Animal Stabilization
Fund, his or her authorized agent for any purposes under this Article. Every such owner aiso shail be
deemed to have released any officer, or veterinarian participating in the Injured Animal Stabilization
Fund, from any cause of action or claim avising out of or related to any action such officer or veterinarian
may take under this Atticle, except for actions which constitute gross negligence.

(c) Each Animal Control Officer ot law enforcement officer acting under this Article shall
within a reasonable time report to the Animal Control Director the nature and extent of the injuries of
each such animal and the disposition thereof. The Animal Control Department shall maintain a record of
the nature and extent of each such animal's injuries and of the disposition thereof.

(d) There is hereby established the Cumbertand County Injured Animal Stabilization Fund,
to which contributions, grants, donations, or restitution may be made for the purpose of reimbursing
veterinarians agreeing to participate with the Fund in stabilizing the injuries of injured animals
transported to them for stabilization under this Article. The Director may solicit or raise funds for the

12-29-11 Draft - Cumberland County Animal Control Ordinance
Page 25 of 28



Fund. The Fund shall be administered by a committee which shall include the Cumberland County
Finance Officer or his or her designee and a veterinarian designated by the Cumberland County Animal
Control Board. Funds shall be disbursed from the Fund by the Finance Officer under guidelines
established by the committee.

{e) Any Animal Control Officer or law enforcement officer, or any veterinarian to which an
injured animal may be transported under this Article for stabilization of injuries, shall be deemed to be
an authorized agent of and acting on behalf of Cumberland County and its Animal Control Department
pursuant to the authority of this Article. Any such officer or veterinarian acting pursuant to this Article
shall be entitled to all the defenses, immunities and rights afforded by law or available to Cumbetland
County and its officers, employees or agents.

()] If any owner of an animal transported under this section to a veterinarian participating in
the Injured Animal Stabilization Fund shall subsequently be identified by the Animal Control
Department, he or she shall make restitution to the Fund of the amount disbursed by it to the participating
veterinarian. -

Sec. 3-61 through Sec. 3-69.  Reserved.

ARTICLE VIL. MISCELLANEOUS,
Sec, 3-70. Keeping chickens or rabbits - Sanitation requi'réments.

It shall be unlawful to keep, house or pen chickens or rabbits on premises which fail to meet
sanitary standards established by the Cumberland County Board of Health.

Sec. 3-71. Stables to be kept clean.

Every stable or other place where cattle, horses or animals are kept shall be maintained at all
times in a clean and healthful condition.

Sec. 3-72, Grazing animﬁls. '

It shall be unlawful for any owner or keeper to stake or graze any cow, horse or other animal in
any patk, cemetery or other public place or niear any public sidewalk. This section shall not apply to
horses used by any law enforcement agency for mounted patrol.

Seec. 3-73. Disposition of dead animals,

The owner of any animal dying from any cause within the jurisdiction of the county shall cause
the same to promptly be buried in a sanitary manner within 24 hours after such owner has knowledge of

such death,

Sec. 3-74. Selling live animals in public rights of way and other public property
prohibited.

Tt is unlawful to sell, auction, trade, barter, and display for commercial purposes or give away
any live animal within the right of way of any public highway, public vehicular area, public sidewalk,
public property or street within Cumberland County. The Animal Control Department may immediately
take custody of and impound any live animals found being sold in violation of this section. This section
shail not apply to any animal welfare organization or humane society qualified under Section 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code acting pursuant to a permit issued by the Animal Control Director, which

12-29-11 Draft - Cumberland County Animal Control Ordinance
Page 26 of 28




permit may be conditioned on reasonable conditions to assure the health, welfare and safety of the
animals being sold, auctioned, traded, bartered, displayed or given away.

Sec. 3-75. Provisions only applicable within the corporate limits of any municipality in which
this ordinance is applied.

(a) No hogs shall be kept within the corporate limits of any municipality in which this
ordinance is applied.

)] No horse, mule, pony, cow or goat shall be stabled or housed within one hundred (100)
feet of any dwelling house, school, church or eating establishment within the corporate limits of any
municipality in which this ordinance is applied. o

(©) No more than ten (10) chickens or rabbits shall be kept, housed or penned at a dwelling
or on the lot on which such dwelling is located within the corporate limits of any municipality in which
this ordinance is applied. i

(e) No cow, horse or other animal shall be tethered ot permitted to graze or stand within
thirty (30) feet of any wall, or within fifty (50) feet of the front door, -of any residence within the
corporate limits of any municipality in which this ordinance is applied. This subsection shall not apply to
horses used by any law enforcement agency for mounted patrol. -

See, 3-76 through See. 3-79.  Reserved.

ARTICLE IX. ENFORCEMENT
Sec, 3-80. Enforcement, generally.

(a) The primary responsibility for the enforcement of this Chapter shall be vested in the
Animal Control Depattment. =

(b) Any person authorized to enfotce this Chapter may do so by issuing a notice of
violation or civil penalty citation, or by applying to the General Court of Justice for a temporary
restraining order, a preliminary injunction, a permanent injunction or an order to abate a nuisance, as may
be appropriate in the circumstances.

(c) Upon information made known to or complaint lodged with the Animal Control
Department that any owner, possessor, o custodian of any dog or animal is in violation of this Chapter,
an Animal Control Officer may investigate the complaint to determine whether to issue a notice of
violation (civil citation) requiring the owner, possessor or custodian of the dog or animal to pay the stated
¢ivil penalty and abate the nuisance specified or whether o take such other enforcement action as may be
authorized under this Chapter.

(d) If the owner, possessor or custodian of any dog or animal is not known and the dog or
animal is upon the public streets, alleys, sidewalks, school grounds or other public places or premises, or
another's property without that property owner's permission, in violation of this Chapter, the dog or
animal shall be impounded in the animal shelter.

(e) Any decision of the Animal Control Director or his designee to seize or impound any
animal, other than a decision made pursuant to the provisions of Article III, may be appealed to the
Animal Control Board for review and final decision upon the owner or keeper of such seized or

12-29-11 Draft - Cumbertand County Animat Control Ordinance
Page 27 of 28



impounded animal giving written notice of appeal within three business days of receiving notice of the
Director’s decision, The Animal Control Board shall afford the opportunity for a hearing to any person
giving notice of appeal and shall conduct the hearing for the purpose of either affirming, reversing, or
modifying the decision of the Director.

Sec. 3-81. Penatlties for violations.

(a) Any violation of this Chapter shall subject the offender to a civil penalty to be recovered
by the Animal Control Department in a civil action in the nature of a debit, to include the cost of abating a
public nuisance. Any costs of abatement and civil penalties shall be paid within seven days of issuance
of a notice of violation. Each day's continuing violation shall be a separate and distinct offense.

(b) A notice of violation shall specify the nature of the violation and the sections of this
Chapter violated, and further notify the offender that the civil penalty spe01ﬁed thelem shall be paid to
the Animal Control Director at the animal shelter within seven days.

{c) Unless otherwise provided in this Chapter, the civil penalty for a violation of this
Chapter, shall be $100 for a first violation or for a violation more than 12 months after a previous
violation. For subsequent violations within tweive (12) months of a previous violation, the penalty shall
be $200 for a second violation and $300 for a third or subsequent violation within a twelve-month period
of the first violation.

(d) In addition to the civil penalties prescribed in this section, any violation of this
Chapter, also designated as Chapter 3 of the Cumberland County Code, shall also constitute a Class 3
misdemeanor punishable by a fine of not more than $100 and imprisonment of not more than 20 days.

Sec. 3-82. Severability.

(a) If any section, sentence, clause or phase of this Chapter is, for any reason held to be
invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not
affect the validity of the 1emammg portlons of this Chaptel

(b)  The Board of Commlsswners intends, and it hereby ordains, that the provisions of this
ordinance shall become and be made part of the Code of Ordinances of Cumberland County, Norih

Carolina, and the sections may be renumbered to accomplish such intention.

(¢) - This ordinance shall become effective upon final adoption as by law provided.

Ordinance adopted at the regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners held
, 2012,

12-29-11 Draft - Cumberland County Animal Control Ordinance
Page 28 of 28




ITEM NO.

CounNTy of CUMBERLAND
_‘___.
Animal Control Department

December 6, 2011

TO: CUMBERLAND COUNTY POLICY COMMITTEE

FROM: JOHN A, LAUBY, DIRECTO

SUBJECT: PROPOSAL TO CONDUCT BACKGROUND CHECKS ON
INDIVIDUALS WANTING TO ADOPT FROM SHELTER.

BACKGROUND

The Cumberland County Animal Control Board discussed at their October 3, 2011 meeting to
limit the adoption of certain dog breeds. The advisory board recommended limiting the adoption
of the following breeds; Rottweiler’s, American Staffordshire Terriers, Pit Bulls, Chows, Presa
Canarios and any mix of these breeds.

At the December 5™ meeting of the Animal Control Board it was recommended to amend the
earlier suggestion to limit the adoption of certain breeds. The advisory board directed me to
develop a proposal to conduct background checks on individuals seeking to adopt the breeds as
listed above.

The Animal Control Board was advised that from July 1, - November 30, 2011, there have been
208 confirmed / reported bite attacks in Cumberland County with 82 of those from Pit Bulls.

RECOMMENDATION/PROPOSED ACTION

The Animal Control Board request approval to conduct background checks on individuals that
want to adopt specific breeds of dogs from the animal shelter. Request that the Policy Committee
approve a plan to conduct background checks and request the funding to implement this plan.

P.Q. Box 1829 e Fayetteville, North Carolina 28302-1829 e Telepione (910) 321-6852 o Fax (910) 223-3357




ITEM NO.

CHARLES EVANS

COUNTY COMMISSIONER — AT LARGE
5th Floor, New Courthouse *+ P.O. Box 1829 + Fayetteville, Noxth Carolina 28302-1829

Office: (910) 321-6616 + Home: (910) 426-2415 « Fax: (910) 678-7770

MEMORANDUM
TO: Commissioner Ed Melvin, Chairman
Policy Committee
FROM: Commissioner Charles Evans 0,(

DATE: December 1, 2011

SUBIECT:  Appointment of a County Attorney to the Cape Fear Valley Hospital
System Board of Trustees

This memorandum is to request the placement of an item on the January 5, 2012 Policy
Committee agenda for considering the appointment of a county attorney to the Cape Fear
Valley Hospital System Board of Trustees.

I am aware that the hospital’s attorney represents Cape Fear Valley Hospital System’s
Board of Trustees; however, in light of the recent issues surrounding the hospital,

I feel it would be in the best interest of our citizens and our Board of Commissioners to
have a county attorney on the Board of Trustees who could look after us since we
represent the citizens of Cumberland County.

Because there is no specific category for a county attorney, the Board of Commissioners
could consider appointing one of its county attorneys to the Board of Trustees when one
of the general public positions expires on January 31, 2012, or could consider meeting
with the hospital Board of Trustees to establish a permanent position for the county
attorney or his designee.

Thank you for your consideration. I look forward to your reply.
Ce: Board of Commissioners

James Martin, County Manager
Rick Moorefield, County Attorney

Celebrating Our Past. .. Embracing Our Future

EASTOVER - FALCON - FAYETTEVILLE - GODWIN - HOPEMILES - LINDEN - SPRING LAKE - STEDMAN - WADE




